This is an official CDC HEALTH ADVISORY

Distributed via Health Alert Network Friday, March 28, 2003, 22:50 EST (10:50 PM EST) CDCHAN-00131-03-03-28-UPD-N

Smallpox Vaccine and Heart Problems: Information For People Who Have Recently Received The Smallpox Vaccine

As someone who has recently received the smallpox vaccine, you should know about new developments involving smallpox vaccination and heart problems. There is evidence that suggests that smallpox vaccination may cause cases of heart inflammation (myocarditis), inflammation of the membrane covering the heart (pericarditis), and a combination of these two problems (myopericarditis). A few cases of heart pain (angina) and heart attack also have been reported following smallpox vaccination. It is not known at this time if smallpox vaccination causes angina or heart attacks.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Regarding Heart Inflammation: Careful monitoring of smallpox vaccinations given over recent months has suggested that the vaccine may cause myocarditis, pericarditis, and/or myopericarditis. Experts are exploring this more in depth.

Among the large number of people (military personnel and civilians) who have recently received the smallpox vaccine, a few cases of myocarditis and/or pericarditis have been identified:

- In the civilian vaccination program, 25,645 persons have been vaccinated as of March 21, 2003. Two cases of
 myopericarditis have been reported. Onset of these occurred 2 days and 17 days after vaccination, and each of the
 patients has recovered.
- As of March 23, 2003, the military has vaccinated approximately 350,000 people. Ten cases of myocarditis and/or pericarditis have been reported; all were in people receiving the vaccine for the first time. Onset of the cases occurred 6 to 12 days following vaccination. None of the cases have been clinically severe, and all the patients are reported to have recovered fully. No cases of myocarditis or pericarditis were detected among approximately 110,000 persons in the military program who had been vaccinated before.

Regarding Angina and Heart Attack: Two cases of angina (chest pain caused by lack of blood flow to the heart) and three cases of heart attack have been reported among the 25,645 civilians recently vaccinated. Two of the persons with heart attacks have died. Four of these five patients, including the three persons with heart attacks, had clearly defined risk factors for coronary artery disease known in their medical history. The five patients had illness onset from 4 to 17 days after vaccination. It is not known at this time if smallpox vaccination caused these problems or if they occurred by chance alone (heart problems are very common). Reported events are not necessarily caused by the vaccine, and some or all of these events might be coincidental. Experts are investigating this question.

WHAT THIS MEANS FOR YOU

As someone who has received the smallpox vaccine, you should see a health care provider right away if you develop chest pain, shortness of breath, or other symptoms of cardiac disease.

If you have been diagnosed by a doctor as having heart disease or risk factors for heart disease, and have concerns, contact your heart disease specialist or your regular health care provider. All people with heart disease or risk factors should receive the routine care recommended for persons with these conditions.

For more information, visit http://www.cdc.gov/smallpox , or call the CDC public response hotline at (888) 246-2675 (English), (888) 246-2857 (Español), or (866) 874-2646 (TTY).

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) protects people's health and safety by preventing and controlling diseases and injuries; enhances health decisions by providing credible information on critical health issues; and promotes healthy living through strong partnerships with local, national and international organizations.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES